Society of Plastics Engineers, Student Chapter Texas Tech University

Article I. Name and Objective

Section 1- The name of this organization shall be the Society of Plastics Engineers Texas Tech University Student Chapter.

Section 2- The objective of this chapter shall be to promote the scientific and engineering knowledge relating to plastics and polymers.

Section 3- No part of the net earnings of the Society shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, officers or other private persons, except that the Society shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth by the Officers Council.

Article II. Anti-Discriminatory Statement

Section 1- The Texas Tech Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers does not and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation in any of its activities or operations. These activities include but are not limited to, election of

officers or faculty advisor, selection of members, volunteers and provision of services. The SPE student chapter is an equal opportunity organization and we are committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all our members.

Article III. Membership Selection and Removal

Section 1- Membership shall be restricted to those students who have enrolled as student members of the National Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers.

Section 2- Prospective members must first request to join through the organization's portal page or contact the Faculty Advisor and/or the Secretary to gain membership in the Texas Tech University Student Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers. Prospective members must fill out the member questionnaire that can be found from the Secretary or the organization's portal page. In addition, the individual must show proof of membership to the National Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers.

Section 3- Membership shall not be restricted on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, gender, religion, handicap, or age.

Section 4- An Active member of the Student Chapter must be a present student of the Texas Tech University.

Section 5- Any member or officer can submit a member in violation of the organization purpose or constitution to the president. Once the violation is received it shall be reviewed by the officer's council in the

next meeting. If the officer's council finds the violation credible then they will schedule a time for the member to come speak about the violation. After the meeting the council will take a vote on whether to move forward with the removal process or not. A majority vote of the officer's council shall be required to remove the member.

Article IV. Officer Titles and Duties

Section 1- The elected officers of this Chapter shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.

Section 2- All active members of the Chapter with Junior standing or above shall be eligible to hold an office. No member may simultaneously hold more than one of the offices named in Section 1.

Section 3- No member may be elected to the same office for more than one full, consecutive term. A member succeeding to an unexpired term in any office is eligible for election to a complete term in that office the following Spring Semester. In the absence of nominees for an officer position, the officer from the previous year may retain his/her office.

Section 4- The Officers Council shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Faculty Advisor.

- (a) The President shall be Chair of the Officers Council.
- **(b)**The Officers Council shall conduct whatever business it deems necessary to facilitate the Chapters regular business meetings.

- **(c)** The President shall have the authority to call meetings of the Officers Council.
- **(d)**A majority of the Officers shall constitute a quorum for a meeting of the Officers Council.
- **(e)**The Officers Council shall keep a record of its meetings and the business conducted. This record becomes a part of the minutes of the Chapter.

Section 5- The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

- (a) The President shall preside at all meetings, act as an official representative of the Chapter at any function requiring such a representative, and shall see that the other officers of the Chapter perform their duties in accordance with these By-Laws. The office of the President shall only be held by a Graduate Student unless the President resigns. In the event of a resignation, the Vice President shall assume and fulfill the duties of the President until an election or special election is called.
- (b) The Vice President is the chief liaison officer with the National Society of Plastics Engineers, industry and academia. The Vice President shall assume and fulfill the duties of the President in the absence of or in case of resignation of the President. In case the Vice President shall succeed to the Presidency of the Chapter, a successor shall be elected to fill the unexpired term of the Vice President as soon as it is practicable.

- (c) The Secretary shall issue all notices and shall be responsible for all records of the Chapter, including an official copy of the Chapter's By-Laws. The Secretary shall furnish all members with a copy of these By-Laws, shall keep the minutes of the Chapter meetings, and shall keep records of correspondence of the Student Chapter with other Chapters and the National Chapter. Upon leaving office, the Secretary shall collect written reports from committee chairs of Chapter activities and recommendations for improving Chapter operation for the incoming Secretary.
- (d) The Treasurer shall collect and care for all money, properties, and financial records of the Chapter and shall make payments on the written approval of the President and/or Faculty Advisor for Chapter expenses.

Section 6- Student Organization Representative Council Representative (SORC Rep): The President shall assume the duties and the responsibilities of the SORC Rep. The President shall also have the right to select an additional officer as SORC Rep if he deems fit. In the absence of or in case of resignation of the President the Treasurer shall assume and fulfill the duties of the SORC Rep.

Article V. Officer Election and Removal

Section 1- Officers shall be elected at the end of the Spring Semester for the following Fall Semester. Officers elected to the positions of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer serve a term lasting one year.

Section 2- The new officers shall take office at the beginning of the Fall semester.

Section 3- Nominations for office shall be made by active members at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Student Chapter. Each nomination must be accompanied by the pledge of the nominee to serve in the office if elected.

Section 4- If criteria in Section 3 are met, voting for Officers shall take place at the following scheduled Student Chapter meeting.

Section 5- A count of 15 active members present during voting shall constitute a quorum for election of officers. A majority vote shall be required for election. If no nominee receives a majority on the first ballot, a second ballot shall be held between the two leading candidates.

Section 6- A special election shall be held to fill any vacant office occurring before the next regular election, except that a vacancy in the office of President shall be filled by the Vice President until the next election or special election. If the President resigns in the Summer, a special election shall be held to elect a new President early Fall. If the President resigns in the Spring Semester, the Vice President will fulfill the term of the Presidency.

Section 7- A recall election for any office may be initiated by action of the Officers Council or by vote or written request of half of the active membership. A count of 15 active members present during voting shall

constitute a quorum for election of officers. A majority vote shall be required for recall.

Article VI. Faculty Advisor Selection and Responsibilities

Section 1- The Faculty Advisor must hold at least the rank of Assistant Professor and be a Faculty member in the College of Engineering or College of Arts and Sciences.

Section 2- The Faculty Advisor is an ex-officio member of the Officers Council. The Advisor shall serve as a liaison between the Chapter and the University and shall guide the Chapter in their actions and activities. He shall have signature authority on the Chapter accounts.

Section 3- The Faculty Advisor shall be elected in odd-numbered years for a term of two years and may be re-elected. The newly elected Officers and the outgoing Faculty Advisor will nominate and vote for a new Faculty Advisor in the Spring Semester of odd-numbered years at their convenience.

Article VII. Committees

Section 1- The officer's council shall have the right to form and dissolve the following types of ad hoc committees at its discretion.

- (a) Events Committee
- (b) Recruiting Committee
- (c) Scholarship Committee
- (d)Funding Committee
- (e) Web Page Committee

Section 2- The duties of the committees shall be as follows:

- (a) The Events Committee will work to schedule field trips and other events to promote plastics and polymer knowledge for the Chapter and/or the community.
- **(b)**The Recruiting Committee will work to recruit students from Science, Engineering and Technology majors on the Texas Tech campus with an interest in plastics or polymers to join the Student Chapter.
- **(c)** The Scholarship Committee shall be composed of the Officers Council and any other representative(s) the Officers Council sees fit to appoint for scholarship/academic reward decisions.
- (d) The Funding Committee shall work closely with the Vice President in order to contact local and regional industry in addition to the

Regional Chapters of The Society of Plastics Engineers to secure funding for the Student Chapter.

(e) The Web Page Committee will work to develop and maintain a website for the Student Chapter.

Section 3- All committees will have a committee chair. Committee Chairs will be voted in using the same process in Article IV, Sections 1-5.

Section 4- In the event of there is a vacancy for a committee Chair, the President will appoint an individual to that vacancy.

Article VIII. Associations/External Relationships

Section 1- The Texas Tech Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers is associated with the South Texas Section of the Society of Plastics Engineers and the National Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers.

Section 2- The Texas Tech Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers has an external relationship with the Department of Chemical Engineering, Texas Tech.

Article IX. Finances

Section 1- The expenses of the Chapter shall be met by private donations and any funds obtained from the Texas Tech University Student Government Association.

Section 2- A simple majority vote of the Chapter Members shall be required to add or change any fees or dues or levy any assessments for Student Chapter memberships.

Section 3- In the event, that the organization ceases to exist, all assets shall be donated to the National Chapter of the Society of Plastics Engineers.

Article X. Amendments

Section 1- A proposed amendment to these By-Laws must be read by an active member and seconded by an active member at one chapter meeting and voted on at the following meeting. A quorum of 15 active members must be present at the meetings.

Section 2- A favorable majority of two-thirds of the total votes cast shall be required to pass an amendment.

Article XI. Procedures for Decision Making

Section 1- Quorum will consist of a count of 15 active members of the organization.

Section 2- All votes will be determined by a majority vote of all eligible voters in the organization unless otherwise specified.

Article XII. Conduct

Section 1- All members agree to abide by the rules and regulations set forth in the Texas Tech Student Affairs Handbook, Code of Student Conduct.

Article XIII. Parliamentary Authority

Section 1- The Student chapter of Society of Plastics Engineers at Texas Tech shall use Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as its authority on parliamentary procedure.